
    

2015-1020 Council Meeting Minutes 
- 1 - 

TOWN OF SOUTH PRAIRIE 

RECESSED COUNCIL MEETING/BUDGET WORKSHOP 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2015, 7:00 PM 

South Prairie Town Hall 

121 NW Washington Street 

 

The following is a condensation of the proceedings and is not a verbatim transcript. 

  
CALL TO ORDER: 

At 7:02 PM, Mayor Tony Caldwell called to order and presided over the Recessed Council 
Meeting/Budget Workshop of Tuesday, October 20, 2015. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
Council Members:   Stu Terry, Roy Hanson, Jan Twardoski, Barb Wigton and Vicky Watkins were 
present. 
Also in attendance:  Judy Tremblay, Deputy Clerk/Treasurer; and Marla Nevill, Clerk/Treasurer. 
 

FLAG SALUTE: 
Mayor Tony Caldwell requested everyone stand for the “Pledge of Allegiance.” 

 

REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF AGENDA FOR OCTOBER 20, 2015: 

� Wigton/Twardoski moved and seconded to approve the Agenda for October 20, 2015.  Discussion 
followed.  Motion carried unanimously. 

     
CITIZENS’ COMMENTS (Five Minute Limit per Comment or Complaint): 
None 
 
FY2016 BUDGET WORKSHOP: 
Summary of items Council requested in the FY2016 Budget: 
1) Safety Line Item requested by Councilor Stu Terry.  Councilor Stu Terry requested purchasing security 
cameras under the Safety Line Item for approximately $1,000.  Mayor Tony Caldwell said a good camera 
costs about $4,000 and tasked Councilor Stu Terry to check into this issue further. 
2) Window sills at the Community Center resurfaced – requested by Councilor Vicky Watkins.  Mayor 
Tony Caldwell requested she obtain estimates. 
3)  Strip, clean and reseal the floors at the Community Center – requested by Mayor Tony Caldwell. 
4) Increase the Repairs & Maintenance line item for the Community Center to $10,000 – Council in 
agreement. 
5) Inspect and possibly replace the roof at the Fire Station/Community Center. 
6) Pressure wash and paint the exterior of the Fire Station/Community Center. 
7) Street overlay or chip seal the streets in town – requested by Councilor Barb Wigton.  Mayor Tony 
Caldwell said they were inspected and an overlay or chip seal is not needed at this time. 
8) Install Street lights at Highway 162 & Rainier Avenue and Highway 162 & South Prairie Road – 
requested by Councilor Barb Wigton.  Mayor Tony Caldwell said he would research further and obtain 
cost estimates. 
9) Install additional playground equipment at the Third Street and Veterans Parks – requested by 
Councilor Barb Wigton.  Mayor Tony Caldwell said this would cost approximately $75,000-$100,000.  
Discussion followed.  Council requested tabling this discussion until the November 2015 Council 
Meeting. 
10) Build a Skateboard Park through possible grant funding – requested by Councilor Barb Wigton.  
Mayor Tony Caldwell said a past Council said no to this issue because of the increased liability to the 
Town.  Council requested tabling this discussion to a later date. 



    

2015-1020 Council Meeting Minutes 
- 2 - 

11) Upgrade the Well at Third Street Park – requested by Councilor Barb Wigton.  Mayor Tony Caldwell 
said hopefully the cost estimate for this project would be included in the Water System Plan Update. 
12) Open up the Community Center for Senior Citizen luncheons once a week – requested by Councilor 
Barb Wigton.  Mayor Tony Caldwell asked Councilor Barb Wigton if she would be willing to run that 
program.  Discussion followed.  Councilor Barb Wigton requested a notice be posted on the reader board 
that the Community Center is for rent. 
13) We should look at decreasing the annual increase for water and sewer to 1-2% instead of 5% - 
requested by Councilor Barb Wigton.  Council requested tabling this discussion until the November 2015 
Council Meeting. 
14) Senior Citizen Discount for water and sewer – requested by Councilor Barb Wigton.  Council 
requested tabling this discussion until the November 2015 Council Meeting.  
15) Rehabilitate the baseball field at the Third Street Park for the White River Community Athletic 
Program (WRCAP) – requested by Councilor Barb Wigton.  Mayor Tony Caldwell said the Council shot 
this issue down a few years ago; but we could rehabilitate the baseball field ourselves through volunteer 
work.  He would like to see the facility used and didn’t think there would be a lot of cost involved.  
Discussion followed. 
16) Possibly build a Splash Park – requested by Mayor Tony Caldwell.  He said we could research this 
issue further and get cost estimates for future discussions. 
17) Council upgrades to Veterans Park – requested by Mayor Tony Caldwell.  Discussion followed.       

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 

None 
 

MAYOR’S REPORT AND PUBLIC WORKS’ REPORT: 
1) Mayor Tony Caldwell said Rainier Avenue and Second Street have been repaired.  Discussion 
followed.   
 
PUBLIC WORKS’ REPORT: 

1) Proposal from BHC Consultants – Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) Capacity Assessment 

and Engineering Report: 
Mayor Tony Caldwell said we received a proposal from BHC Consultants for a WWTP Assessment and 
Engineering Report.  The cost estimate for Phase I is $22,255; and the cost estimate for Phase II is 
$52,060, with a total cost of $74,315. Discussion followed. 
� Terry/Twardoski moved and seconded to approve Phase I of the BHC Consultants proposal at a cost 

of $22,255.  Discussion followed.  Motion carried unanimously. 
� Terry/Hanson moved and seconded to table the approval of Phase II until we have the results from 

Phase I.  Discussion followed.  Motion carried unanimously. 
2) Proposal from Water System Engineering, PLLC – Water System Plan Update: 

Mayor Tony Caldwell said we received a proposal from Water System Engineering, PLLC, to update 
our Water System Plan in the amount of $15,900.  He said we could not add any new water connections 
until our Water System Plan is updated.  Discussion followed. 
� Twardoski/Terry moved and seconded to approve the Water System Plan Update proposed by Water 

System Engineering, PLLC, at a cost of $15,900.  Discussion followed.  Motion carried 

unanimously. 
3) Maintenance Work at the WWTP: 

Mayor Tony Caldwell said Flohawks is doing a lot of maintenance work at the WWTP.  Discussion 
followed. 
 



    

2015-1020 Council Meeting Minutes 
- 3 - 

4) Rainier Avenue is repaired: 
Mayor Tony Caldwell said Rainier Avenue has been repaired.  Discussion followed. 
5) Community Service Workers: 
Mayor Tony Caldwell said we’ve used a lot of community service workers.  He said we had one that had 
to put in 50 hours of community service.  We had one community service worker start today; and his wife 
might be starting tomorrow.  Discussion followed. 
                  

CLERK’S REPORT: 
1) Marla Nevill said she did not have anything to report. 
2) Judy Tremblay said we had a customer that called and said they did not receive their bill and 
complained about the $15 late penalty.  They requested the Town waive the late fee because they are 
never late with their payments.  Discussion followed. 
� Twardoski/Terry moved and seconded to approve waiving the late fee this one time for the party 

that filed the complaint.  Discussion followed.  Motion carries.  (Hanson and Wigton opposed). 
3) Judy Tremblay said a water/sewer customer came before the Council several months ago and stated 
they would pay the past due balance on their account.  She said this customer made a one-time payment; 
but did not bring their account current.  She said now that customer has requested that we allow him to 
pay $1,000 on the account every other month.  She said we still have a lien on the property.  Discussion 
followed.  No Council Action was taken. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS REPORT: 
Councilor Stu Terry:  Stated he’s been digging a ditch in his front yard.  Discussion followed. 
Councilor Roy Hanson:  None 
Councilor Jan Twardoski:  None 
Councilor Barb Wigton:  Said she stated her items earlier.  Discussion followed. 
Councilor Vicky Watkins:  She said one of their neighbors have garbage and appliances piling up in 
their front yard.  She asked about the garbage ordinance.  Discussion followed. 
Mayor Tony Caldwell said we have a Code Enforcement issue again on SE Third Street.  Discussion 
followed. 

   
ADJOURNMENT: 
� At 9:02 PM, Watkins/Twardoski moved and seconded to adjourn the Recessed Council Meeting of 

October 20, 2015.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

 

 

Date Approved:  November 3, 2015  


